

49 Leavenworth Street, 3rd Floor, Waterbury, CT 06702 · 203-757-0535 · 203-735-8688 · nvcogct.gov

MINUTES Naugatuck Valley Council of Governments and

Central Naugatuck Valley MPO

Hybrid Meeting NVCOG Conference Room 49 Leavenworth Street, 3rd Floor Waterbury, CT 06702 10 a.m., Friday, December 10, 2021

NVCOG Representatives: Sheila O'Malley, Alternate for Ansonia and Proxy for Seymour (virtual); Stephen Sordi, First Selectman, Bethlehem (in-person); Rich Dziekan, Mayor, Derby (in-person); Ed St. John, First Selectman, Middlebury (in-person); Pete Hess, Mayor, Naugatuck (in-person); Kristyn Rosa, Proxy, Oxford (virtual); Joe Kilduff, Mayor, Plymouth (virtual); Neil O'Leary, Mayor, Waterbury (in-person); Tom Dunn, Mayor, Wolcott (virtual); Barbara Perkinson, First Selectwoman, Woodbury (virtual).

Guests/Other: Representative Cindy Harrison (virtual); Erik Shortell, FHWA (virtual); Tom Hyde, Naugatuck Valley Regional Development Corporation (virtual); John Field, DEMHS Region 5 (virtual); Jennine Lupo, Office of Congresswoman Jahana Hayes (virtual); Sara Radacsi, CTDOT (virtual); Hedy Ayers, Eversource (virtual); Lou Mangini, Office of Congresswoman Rosa De Lauro (virtual); Ellen Graham, Office of Senator Richard Blumenthal (virtual).

Staff: Rick Dunne (in-person); Mark Nielsen (virtual); Aaron Budris (virtual); Joanna Rogalski (virtual); Lauren Rizzo (in-person); John DiCarlo (in-person); Karen Svetz (in-person); Mike Szpryngel (in-person); Richard Crowther, Jr. (in-person); Christine O'Neill (in-person); Josh Lecar (virtual); Richard Donovan (virtual); Savannah-Nicole Villalba (virtual); Kevin Ellis (in-person); Kate Minutillo (virtual).

1. Commencement of Meeting (Pledge of Allegiance, Roll Call, Public Comment)

Chairman Neil O'Leary called the meeting to order at 10:05 a.m. Those in attendance recited the Pledge of Allegiance and the roll was called. Mr. O'Leary welcomed Stephen Sordi, the newly elected First Selectman of Bethlehem, and Joe Kilduff, the newly elected Mayor of Bristol.

<u>Public Comment</u>: Ed St. John thanked Mayor O'Leary and Waterbury Police Chief Spagnolo for their efforts in helping Middlebury and other smaller communities get some recognition at the state level concerning juvenile crime. On behalf of Eversource, Hedy Ayers wished everyone a happy holiday season.

- 2. **CNVMPO Meeting** (Voting members for these items are limited to the 15 CEOs in the CNVMPO area)
 - a. Approval of CNVMPO Resolution 2022-03 Endorsing the MOU Regarding Transportation Planning and Funding in the New Haven Urbanized Area Mark Nielsen said federal regulations require that if more than one MPO has been designated to serve an urbanized area, there must be a written agreement among the MPOs, the state, and the public transportation operators describing how the metropolitan planning processes will be coordinated. The New Haven UZA includes parts of several planning regions and MPOs, including the South Central Region COG, Capitol Region COG, and Lower Connecticut River COG. The four Councils of Governments cooperatively determined their mutual responsibilities in carrying out the metropolitan planning process and identified their respective responsibilities. The Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) was developed in

consultation with the CTDOT. The other three COGs have endorsed their MOUs. On a motion by Pete Hess, seconded by Ed St. John, it was unanimously

VOTED: To adopt CNVMPO Resolution 2022-03 endorsing the MOU regarding transportation planning and funding in the New Haven Urbanized Area and authorizing the Executive Director of the NVCOG to sign and execute said MOU on behalf of the CNVMPO.

b. Approval of CNVMPO Resolution 2022-04 Designating the Bureau Chief of the CTDOT's Bureau of Policy and Planning as a Non-Voting Member of the CNVMPO — Rick Dunne said there is a recommendation from CTDOT that the CNVMPO appoint a non-voting member from CTDOT to the CNVMPO policy board. He noted that this is a Transportation Management Area (TMA) requirement. The CNVMPO has not been designated as a TMA; that designation occurs if the urban area population served by the MPO is greater than 200,000. Despite this, CTDOT has asked all MPOs in Connecticut to designate a state representative. The Executive Board recommends adoption of the resolution. The Executive Board also wanted the non-voting member from CTDOT to be someone at the management level that could answer questions at meetings substantively. On a motion by Pete Hess, seconded by Ed St. John, it was unanimously

VOTED: To adopt CNVMPO Resolution 2022-04 designating the Bureau Chief of the Connecticut Department of Transportation's Bureau of Policy and Planning as a non-voting member of the Central Naugatuck Valley MPO.

c. Approval of CNVMPO Resolution 2022-05 TIP Amendment RAISE Grant Funds for the Derby-Shelton Multimodal Transportation Center—Richard Donovan said CTDOT is adding projects to the TIP related to the recently awarded RAISE Grant for enhancements to the Derby-Shelton Multimodal Transportation Center. The project totals \$24.5 million and does not anticipate a local match. On a motion by Pete Hess, seconded by Ed St. John, it was unanimously

VOTED: To adopt CNVMPO Resolution 2022-05 regarding Project No. 0304-XXXX, RAISE Discretionary Derby-Shelton Multimodal Transportation Center.

d. Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act Discussion – Mark Nielsen said he would be focusing on the transportation aspects of this bill. The Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act reauthorizes the FAST Act for five years, provides \$567 billion in guaranteed funding, authorizes \$93.5 billion subject to congressional action, retains core FHWA and FTA programs, creates two new formula programs, and authorizes new discretionary and pilot programs. Mr. Nielsen displayed a slide and reviewed increased funding percentages for core highway programs. He displayed additional slides showing several program policy changes that will be instituted. Mr. Dunne said CTDOT had given a briefing and will be meeting individually with each MPO. In addition, he said that the money that comes to the MPOs to run the operations and do the work has increased by almost 30% under the new bill, however, CTDOT's interpretation is not to release the money until 2024. Negotiations with CTDOT will continue.

3. NVCOG Administrative Items

a. Approval of the Minutes of the October 8, 2021 NVCOG & CNVMPO Meeting – On a motion by Pete Hess, seconded by Rich Dziekan, with Joe Kilduff abstaining, it was

VOTED: To approve the minutes of the October 8, 2021 NVCOG and CNVMPO meeting.

b. Approval of Agency Financial Reports and Summaries for the Period Ending 10/31/21 – Michal Szpryngel said NVCOG is 33% through the fiscal year with a net balance of \$194,000. There have been no unexpected funding cuts, and things are performing on track. On Monday, OPM gave approval to submit invoices for RSG. The first and second quarter payments are expected in January. On a motion by Pete Hess, seconded by Rich Dziekan, it was unanimously

VOTED: To approve the NVCOG financial reports and summaries as presented.

For informational purposes, Mr. Szpryngel also presented a half-year budget status. A deficit of \$103,000 had been projected. After reevaluation, he now projects a surplus of approximately \$10,000. On a motion by Pete Hess, seconded by Ed St. John, it was unanimously

VOTED: To approve the NVCOG half-year budget status.

c. Approval of NVCOG Meeting Schedule for 2022 – On a motion by Pete Hess, seconded by Rich Dziekan, it was unanimously

VOTED: To adopt, as presented, the 2022 NVCOG and CNVMPO holiday schedule.

3. Approval of NVCOG Holiday Schedule for 2022 – On a motion by Pete Hess, seconded by Tom Dunn, it was unanimously

VOTED: To adopt, as presented, the 2022 NVCOG and CNVMPO holiday schedule.

- 3. *Director's Report* Rick Dunne reported the following:
 - The Regional Brownfield Partnership annual meeting has been rescheduled to 1/13/22 at the Mattatuck Museum.
 - Mask and Vaccination Policy The Executive Committee recommends that NVCOG hold in-person meetings with a hybrid option until further notice. Anyone who is not vaccinated should wear a mask. The meetings are again open to the public to enter the building.
 - CNVMPO Bylaws Discussion When the COGs merged, NVCOG became a member
 of two MPOs. It was thought that the four lower valley towns would become part of
 the CNVMPO, but this did not transpire and is not expected to happen. Due to this,
 specific bylaws for the CNVMPO were drafted but not adopted. These bylaws will
 now be revised and presented to CNVMPO members for adoption in early 2022.
 - CT Brownfields Land Bank Bylaws NVCOG agreed to a cooperative agreement with the CT Brownfields Land Bank so that its statutory powers could be added to NVCOG's brownfields program toolkit. The NVCOG board will have a majority control of that non-profit. NVCOG has a MOU with the CT Brownfields Land Bank under

which COG staff provides all services and then charges the Land Bank. NVCOG has worked with an attorney on the bylaws, and they will be sent to the existing board of the Land Bank for adoption. The bylaws will change the membership from nine to eleven members and NVCOG will nominate six of the eleven members.

• LOTCIP Third Party Review Contract Awards – On January 13, 2017 the NVCOG board had decided to require board approval to award the engineering review contracts under the LOTCIP program. These are known as third party reviews. NVCOG maintains a short list of pre-qualified firms. As LOTCIP projects are ready for review, the firms submit price proposals. After receipt, the proposals have been brought to the board to be awarded. Unfortunately, this process has the unwanted side effect of slowing down projects. The Executive Committee recommends repealing the board action of January 13, 2017 which requires the board to award LOTCIP third party review contracts. On a motion by Ed St. John, seconded by Rich Dziekan, it was unanimously

VOTED: To authorize Executive Director Rick Dunne to approve and sign LOTCIP third party review contract awards.

4. Appointment of a Three Member Nominating Committee to Recommend a Slate of Four Officers and Five At-Large Members of the Executive Committee

Rick Dunne said the nominating committee would present its recommendation for officers and atlarge members at the January 2022 meeting. The term of service will be 2022-2024. The Executive Committee's recommendation was for the nominating committee to consist of Mayor Tom Dunn, First Selectman Ed St. John, and Mayor Pete Hess. On a motion by Rich Dziekan, seconded by Stephen Sordi, it was unanimously

VOTED: To accept the Executive Committee's recommendation that the three-member nominating committee will consist of Tom Dunn, Ed St. John, and Pete Hess, and that the nominating committee will recommend a slate of four officer and five at-large members at the January 2022 meeting.

5. Approval of NVCOG Resolution 2022-09, Authorization for NVCOG Executive Director Rick Dunne to Execute and Deliver the OPM Notice of Grant Award for FY 22 Regional Services Grant Mr. Dunne said this authorization is passed by the board annually. On a motion by Pete Hess, seconded by Rich Dziekan, it was unanimously

VOTED: To adopt NVCOG Resolution 2022-09, Authorization for NVCOG Executive Director Rick Dunne to Execute and Deliver the OPM Notice of Grant Award for FY 22 Regional Services Grant.

6. Municipal Shared Services

a. Municipal Solid Waste Update, including DEEP Sustainable Materials Management Grant Program – John DiCarlo said the Municipal Solid Waste and Recycling Working Group agreed to a two-tier approach to the solid waste and recycling crisis. One tier is to engage in statewide advocacy, as this issue is not limited to one region or group of towns that contract with a single disposal vendor. To date, no coordination has been accomplished with CCM on this issue. The other tier is to evaluate regional solutions to address reducing waste streams and costs. Towards this end, seven NVCOG member municipalities submitted Letters of

Interest for funds available through the new state Department of Energy and Environmental Protection (DEEP) Solid Waste Materials Management grant program. NVCOG also submitted an application to provide benefits regionally. A virtual meeting was held with DEEP staff on December 2. The meeting outlined application availability, timelines for approval and funding distribution. DEEP and consultant Kristen Brown of Waste Zero will conduct technical assistance meetings with municipal and regional staff. Applications must be submitted to DEEP by late-winter 2022. DEEP will evaluate applications, and awards of funds will most likely coincide with the start of FY 23.

Additionally, on December 14, a demonstration/open house will be held at a regional composting facility in West Haven. This facility could serve as a model for additional regional composting operations. All NVCOG municipalities are encouraged to send a representative to this demonstration.

- b. Regional ARPA Opportunities NVCOG wants to ensure that no opportunities are lost for regional ARPA collaborations or cost savings. Towards this end, each CEO will be receiving an email asking that a contact be designated who will keep NVCOG staff updated on what ARPA projects the municipality is considering and moving forward with. Economies of scale may be achieved, and any potential collaborations will be identified.
- c. NVCOG Household Hazardous Waste Events Update Mr. DiCarlo said collection dates for 2022 will be April 16 in Ansonia, July 16 in Bethlehem, and September 24 in Prospect. NVCOG staff member Christine O'Neill will be facilitating this program going forward.

7. Emergency Management Update

- a. COVID-19 Response Update
 - Long Term Recovery Update Joanna Rogalski gave an update on the FEMA Region 1 project solicitation: 348 projects were submitted to FEMA across the state, 75 of those were from the NVCOG region. FEMA is meeting with distressed communities in relation to these projects and is also gathering project clarification. CT DECD will be assisting FEMA in prioritizing these projects. It is expected that on January 15, 2022, the Connecticut DEMHS regions will start to validate the project prioritizations. There is an increased need for housing, especially with the expiration of the eviction moratorium. COVID cases are experiencing a surge, with the Delta variant being predominant. Ms. Rogalski also noted there is a global worker shortage.

John Field said that from a reimbursement perspective, under public assistance through FEMA, the state currently has over \$264 million that has been allocated to it. \$14.2 million is to municipalities and just under \$250 million is to non-municipal entities. Region 5 has received over \$6 million, with \$1 million for municipal, and just under \$5 million for non-municipal organizations. COVID warehouses for PPE are still being run by DEMHS, with assistance from the National Guard, but it is expected this will be turned over to the Department of Public Health. He also said there are over 400 vaccine sites in the state and just under 400 testing sites.

Mr. Field said DEMHS is still working on reimbursement through FEMA for Tropical Storm Isaias. DEMHS is also working with FEMA on preliminary damage assessments

for Tropical Storm Henri, but it is doubtful the state will meet the threshold. For Tropical Storm Ida, the state as a whole is over the threshold, but not all counties have met their threshold.

Mr. Field asked the CEOs to mention to their school systems that safety and security school plans need to be submitted to DEMHS.

- b. Regional Emergency Planning Team Update Ms. Rogalski said a critical facilities inventory map was created for REPT Region 5.
- c. Community Emergency Response Team Update Ms. Rogalski said the next Region 5 CERT meeting will take place on December 14, 2021. The next statewide meeting is on December 16, 2021.
- d. Approval of NVCOG Resolution 2022-07, Hazard Mitigation Plan Aaron Budris reported that with funding from FEMA, NVCOG staff and its consultant SLR completed work on a mutijurisdictional Regional Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan (NHMP) for the NVCOG region. Input from municipal officials, stakeholders, and the public were all incorporated into a final multijurisdictional HMP and 19 municipal annexes that were submitted to FEMA in August. FEMA approved the plan and annexes in October, pending local adoptions. The project team has been working with each municipality to get the item on local governing boards for adoption. The plan will not be considered active until all 19 municipalities formally adopt the plan. With an active HMP, municipalities will be eligible for federal hazard mitigation funding through several programs. On a motion by Pete Hess, seconded by Ed St. John, it was unanimously

VOTED: To adopt NVCOG Resolution 2022-07 endorsing the Naugatuck Valley Council of Governments Hazard Mitigation Plan, 2021-2026.

8. NVCOG Planning/Transportation

- a. LOTCIP
 - i. Status and Financial Plan Mark Nielsen displayed a graph showing the amount of revenue expected and the amount of obligations for LOTCIP projects. Another seven projects are expected to be awarded construction dollars in July 2022. In 2023, a slight deficit might be run for a short time period. This will be watched. Mr. Nielsen said some projects in the schedule may be delayed to the following year. He said the graph demonstrates that NVCOG has been aggressive in soliciting projects, getting them designed, and getting them ready for construction. Rick Dunne explained that NVCOG wants to be over-programmed in LOTCIP by out to two years, as projects fall back or are taken off the list. He also noted that the COGs and the state effectively do a swap between the state and COG control of federal highway funds. NVCOG gives the federal highway funds and programs them for state projects, and the state in return gives the COGs money. There is a difference between what the state gives the COGs and what the COGs would be getting under the federal program. NVCOG will continue conversations with CTDOT about this.
 - ii. Approval of NVCOG Resolution 2022-04 Third Party Review for LOTCIP Project L006-0001, Beacon Valley Road Reconstruction in Beacon Falls With the repeal of

the requirement that LOTCIP third party reviews be approved by the NVCOG board, this item became moot and there was no need to act upon it.

iii. Approval of NVCOG Resolution 2022-05 — Addition of the Proposed Wolcott Street Project in Bristol to LOTCIP — Rich Donovan reported that the City of Bristol has submitted a pre-application for this project along Wolcott Street. The project is estimated to be approximately \$2.4 million and will reconstruct failed pavement structure, provide new roadway drainage, and improve roadway geometry and roadside safety. Additionally, an existing cross culvert under Wolcott Street will be repaired. The project was reviewed and approved by TTAC. On a motion by Pete Hess, seconded by Sheila O'Malley, it was unanimously

VOTED: To adopt NVCOG Resolution 2022-05, committing regionally apportioned LOTCIP funds to the Wolcott Street project in Bristol.

- iv. Approval of NVCOG Resolution 2022-06, Amendment of NVCOG LOTCIP Policy Guidelines Mark Nielsen recommended this item be tabled until January or later. On Tuesday, NVCOG received revised guidelines from CTDOT and staff is still reviewing them. Staff will be comparing the state guidelines to NVCOG's LOTCIP policy guidelines.
- v. Return of Unexpended LOTCIP Funds Discussion Mr. Nielsen spoke about the required recordkeeping for LOTCIP projects. LOTCIP funds must not be comingled with general municipal funds, towns must fully document all project expenditures, and state single audits are required that include LOTCIP project expenditures. CTDOT will perform project/grant closeouts subsequent to project completion and will notify towns of any unexpended LOTCIP funds that need to be returned.

9. Environmental Planning

- a. Acceptance of Karen Spargo's Resignation from the Regional Brownfields Partnership (RBP), Potential Appointment to Fill Vacancy Rick Dunne explained that the RBP functions as a committee that NVCOG hosts. It is the advisory panel that governs NVCOG's brownfields activities. Every town has an appointee, and NVCOG itself has a seat on its board, which has been filled since 1996 by the Director of the Naugatuck Valley Health District. Mr. Dunne does not have a recommendation for a nominee to fill the position because the health districts are tied up in COVID activities. He would like to find someone in the health district that has an interest in brownfields. He recommended the position remain vacant for now, and he will report back.
- b. Adoption of NVCOG Resolution 2022-08, Authorizing the Filing of an Application with CT DEEP, under Section 319 of the Federal Clean Water Act, to Create a Watershed Based Plan for Hop Brook Watershed Christine O'Neill said the watershed falls within the municipalities of Watertown, Waterbury, Middlebury, Naugatuck, and a small corner of Woodbury. If awarded, funds would be used to hire a consultant to develop a watershed-based plan, which would reduce nonpoint source water pollution and improve water quality. On a motion by Pete Hess, seconded by Ed St. John, it was unanimously

VOTED: To adopt NVCOG Resolution 2022-08 authorizing NVCOG Executive Director Rick Dunne to submit a Section 319 grant application for Hop Brook Watershed to the CT Department of Energy and Environmental Protection, and to sign any documents associated with administering the grant, if awarded.

c. Kinneytown Dam Update - Aaron Budris said the dam's current owner, Hydroland, submitted a letter to FERC on October 5, placing the blame for non-compliance on the previous owners of the facility. Hydroland also proposed a schedule of actions that they claimed would restore fish passage at the dam. On October 22, U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service submitted a letter contesting Hydroland's proposal and presented a much more detailed schedule of actions to bring the dam into compliance with its permit exemption. On September 30, the Kinneytown Coalition (NVCOG, Save the Sound, and the Naugatuck River Revival Group) had filed a legal complaint against Hydroland, seeking to revoke its license exemption. Hydroland has asked FERC to moot the complaint and proposed a similar schedule of actions to those in their October 5 letter. The Coalition responded on November 4 explaining that Hydroland's proposed schedule would not fix fish passage. The Coalition also expressed concerns about Hydroland's financial means and technical expertise required to make meaningful efforts towards compliance. The federal delegation and DEEP both submitted letters to the docket supporting the September 30 complaint. On December 1, Mr. Budris and Kevin Zak visited the facility and documented the failure of Hydroland to comply with deadlines set by FERC, the resource agencies, and even those deadlines Hydroland had imposed on itself. The Coalition submitted that documentation on December 8. DEEP has also been monitoring compliance and has come to the same conclusion that no meaningful efforts have been made. DEEP submitted a letter to FERC on December 3 that pointed out the missed deadlines. Next steps would be for FERC to schedule some items on its docket. A meeting with FERC in Washington, D.C. remains a possibility.

10. **Other**

As the CCM appointed chair to the opioid allocation subcommittee, Mayor Neil O'Leary provided an update on opioid settlement allocations. Cities and towns must sign up and register for the allocations, but not all have done so. For the state to get the maximum allocation, 95% of municipalities must sign up. He asked that every CEO at the meeting double check to make sure their city or town has registered. His office is available to assist.

11. Adjournment

At 11:49 a.m., on a motion by Pete Hess, seconded by Ed St. John, it was unanimously

VOTED: To adjourn the meeting

Respectfully submitted by Lauren Rizzo Administrative Services Coordinator for Ed Mone, Secretary



APPROVAL OF MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING REGARDING TRANSPORTATION PLANNING AND FUNDING IN THE NEW HAVEN URBANIZED AREA

WHEREAS, a portion of the Central Naugatuck Metropolitan Planning Organization is located in the New Haven Urbanized Area.

WHEREAS, the Naugatuck Valley Council of Governments conducts the federal transportation planning process in accordance to US DOT guidelines and regulations, and 23 CFR 450.314(a) for the Central Naugatuck Valley MPO.

WHEREAS, federal regulations require the MPO, the State, and the providers of public transportation to cooperatively determine their mutual responsibilities in carrying out the metropolitan planning process and 23 CFR 450.314 (e) states that if more than one MPO has been designated to serve an urbanized area, there shall be a written agreement among the MPOs, the State, and the public transportation operator(s) describing how the metropolitan planning processes will be coordinated.

WHEREAS, the New Haven Transportation Management (TMA) is comprised of four Councils of Governments (COG) New Haven Urbanized Area.

WHEREAS, the COGs in the New Haven TMA include the South Central Regional Council of Governments (SCRCOG), the Naugatuck Valley Council of Governments (NVCOG), the Capitol Regional Council of Governments and the Lower Connecticut River Council of Governments (RiverCOG).

WHEREAS, the purpose of this MOU is:

- To define the method for distributing metropolitan planning funds received by the CTDOT from the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) and the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) for transportation planning within the New Haven Urbanized Area;
- To define the method for the development of financial plans for the Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP), the Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) and the list of obligated projects along with the coordination involved in Air Quality Conformity and Congestion management;
- To define the method for distributing and administering FHWA Surface Transportation Block Grant Program (STBG) suballocated funds, Transportation Alternatives Set-Aside suballocated funds, FTA Section 5307 funds, and FTA Section 5310 funds earmarked for, or attributable to, the New Haven Urbanized Area; and

 To define the responsibilities of each COG for carrying out its own transportation planning program and for coordinating with the other COGs in the New Haven Urbanized Area.

WHEREAS, the proposed MOU has been prepared in consultation and coordination among the COGs, public transportation operators and the Connecticut Department of Transportation (CTDOT).

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that Central Naugatuck Valley Metropolitan Planning Organization endorses the attached Memorandum of Understanding Regarding Transportation Planning and Funding in the New Haven Urbanized Area and authorizes the Executive Director of the CNVMPO to sign and execute said MOU.

This resolution shall become effective as of December 10, 2021.

I do hereby certify that the resolution adopted by the Central Naugatuck Valley MPO at a public meeting held on December 10, 2021, at which a quorum was present and that the same is a correct and true transcript from the original thereof.

Neil O Leary, Chairman	December 10, 2021	
Neil O Leary, Chairman	Date	



DESIGNATION OF BUREU CHIEF OF CTDOT'S BUREAU OF POLICY AND PLANNING AS A NONN-VOTING MEMBER OF THE CENTRAL NAUGCTUCK VALLEY MPO

WHEREAS, the Central Naugatuck Valley Metropolitan Planning Organization is the federally designated metropolitan planning organization for the Waterbury Urbanized Area and is comprised of fifteen cities and towns of the Naugatuck Valley planning region.

WHEREAS, the voting membership of the CNVMPO is vested in the chief elected official of each member municipality.

WHEREAS, the designation or selection of officials or representatives of the MPO shall be determined by the MPO according to the bylaws or enabling statute of the organization.

WHEREAS, federal regulations, as specified in 23 CFR 450.310 (d), require MPOs designated as a Transportation Management Area, as determined by the population of the urbanized area under its jurisdiction being over 200,000, to include an appropriate state official on the Policy Board. This designated state official may be a non-voting member.

WHEREAS, the CNVMPO is not designated as a TMA but the Connecticut Department of Transportation has requested that all MPOs in the state appoint an appropriate state official.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that Central Naugatuck Valley Metropolitan Planning Organization designates the Bureau Chief of the Connecticut Department of Transportation's Bureau of Policy and Planning as the appropriate state official in accordance with federal regulation.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Bureau Chief of the Bureau of Policy and Planning shall be a non-voting member of the CNVMPO.

This resolution shall become effective as of December 10, 2021.

I do hereby certify that the resolution adopted by the Central Naugatuck Valley MPO at a public meeting held on December 10, 2021, at which a quorum was present and that the same is a correct and true transcript from the original thereof.

Neil O'Leary, Chairman

1 | Page



AMENDMENT FFY 2021-2024 TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM CENTRAL NAUGATUCK VALLEY MPO

WHEREAS, the Central Naugatuck Valley MPO is authorized by the *Fixing America's Surface Transportation Act (FAST Act)* and related US Department of Transportation regulations to prepare, endorse, and periodically amend a short range Transportation Improvement Program for the 15-town MPO area within the Waterbury Urbanized Area and is required to maintain a fiscally-constrained program of priority projects.

WHEREAS, the CNVMPO endorsed the *FFY 2021-2024 Transportation Improvement Program for the Central Naugatuck Valley Planning Region (TIP)* at its October 9, 2020, meeting; and the US Department of Transportation (Federal Highway Administration and Federal Transit Administration) have approved the *State FFY 2021-2024 Transportation Improvement Program (STIP)*.

WHEREAS, the Connecticut Department of Transportation is requesting amendment of the FFY 2021-2024 TIP to allocate the recently awarded discretionary RAISE Grant funding to the Derby-Shelton Multimodal Transportation Center through project 0304-XXXX.

WHEREAS, the new project will require a regional transportation air quality conformity analysis to be completed before additional phases of this project can be added to the TIP.

WHEREAS, the public notification and review of these amendments was consistent with and followed the procedures set forth in the MPO's public involvement guidelines, and the proposed amendments are consistent with the metropolitan transportation plan for the Central Naugatuck Valley planning region.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that Central Naugatuck Valley MPO approves the amendment of the FFY 2021-2024 TIP to allocate RAISE Grant funds as listed and described in the attachment to this resolution.

This resolution shall become effective as of December 10, 2021.

I do hereby certify that the resolution adopted by the Central Naugatuck Valley MPO at a public meeting held on December 10, 2021, at which a quorum was present and that the same is a correct and true transcript from the original thereof.

Neil O'Leary, Chairman

December 10, 2021

Date



LOTCIP ALLOCATE NVCOG ATTRIBUTABLE FUNDS FOR THE WOLCOTT STREET

RECONSTRUCTION PROJECT, BRISTOL

I certify that the following is a true copy of the vote of the Naugatuck Valley Council of Governments at its meeting on December 10, 2021, in Waterbury, Connecticut, at which a quorum was present.

WHEREAS, the Naugatuck Valley Council of Governments is responsible for selecting projects and distributing funds under the Local Transportation Capital Improvement Program ("Program").

WHEREAS, the city of Bristol has submitted a pre-application for LOTCIP funds to implement various improvements along the nearly one (1) mile section of Wolcott Street between CT Route 69 and the intersection of Witches Rock Road, Allentown Road, and Fall Mountain Road.

WHEREAS, the preliminary cost estimate for this project is \$2,402,802.17

WHEREAS, future LOTCIP funds will be available to support this project

WHEREAS, the NVCOG Transportation Technical Advisory Committee (TTAC) has reviewed the project and voted to recommend project approval by the NVCOG Board

BE IT RESOLVED, that the NVCOG Board approves adding the Wolcott Street Reconstruction project in Bristol to the NVCOG LOTCIP Program and allocating \$2.402,802.17 in LOTCIP Program funds attributable to the Naugatuck Valley planning region to the Project.

Dated at 12/10/01, Connecticut, on Naterbury, 2021

Agency: Naugatuck Valley Council of Governments

ighed Villary Chi

ANSONIA - BEACON FALLS - BETHLEHEM - BRISTOL - CHESHIRE - DERBY - MIDDLEBURY - NAUGATUCK - OXFORD - PLYMOUTH

PROSPECT - SEYMOUR - SHELTON - SOUTHBURY - THOMASTON - WATERBURY - WATERTOWN - WOLCOTT - WOODBURY



NAUGATUCK VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN 2021-2029 ENDORSEMENT

I certify that the following is a true copy of the vote of the Naugatuck Valley Council of Governments at its meeting on December 10, 2021 in Waterbury, Connecticut, at which a quorum was present.

WHEREAS, the Naugatuck Valley Council of Governments received federal funding from FEMA to develop a multijurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan for all 19 NVCOG municipalities.

WHEREAS, NVCOG staff and their consultant SLR worked with municipal officials, stakeholders and the public to review previous plans and identify natural hazards and risks, existing capabilities, and activities that can be undertaken by a community to prevent loss of life and reduce property damages associated with the identified hazards.

WHEREAS, SLR prepared a Multijurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan and 19 individual Municipal Annexes consistent with FEMA requirements.

WHEREAS, FEMA approved the Multijurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan and 19 Municipal Annexes pending local adoption.

BE IT RESOLVED, that the NVCOG endorses the Naugatuck Valley Council of Governments Hazard Mitigation Plan, 2021-2029

Dated at <u>Waterbury</u>	, Connecticut, on <u>December 10, 2021</u>
Agency: Naugatuck Valley Counc	
	Signed AM OL
	Neil O'Leary, Chairman 🐧



NAUGATUCK VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS (NVCOG)

RESOLUTION #2022-08

Resolution authorizing the filing of an application to create a Watershed Based Plan for Hop Brook Watershed with the Connecticut Department of Energy and Environmental Protection in response to its Request for Proposals for Grants under Section 319 of the Federal Clean Water Act.

Whereas, the Department of Energy and Environmental Protection (DEEP) has requested applications for funding nonpoint source water pollution management efforts;

Whereas, Hop Brook Watershed is an ecologically and recreationally valuable area within the Naugatuck Valley region that DEEP has identified as a Priority for Action Plan Development.

Whereas, representatives from all municipalities within Hop Brook Watershed and the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers have expressed their support for such an application, with formal letters of endorsement forthcoming.

Whereas, the Naugatuck Valley Council of Governments and its member municipalities wish to restore and preserve the environmental integrity of water resources within the region.

Now Therefore Be It Resolved, that NVCOG strongly supports and endorses the application to create a Watershed Based Plan for Hop Brook Watershed to be submitted in response to the Request for Proposals for Grants under Section 319 of the Federal Clean Water Act.

Be Further Resolved, that Naugatuck Valley Council of Governments authorizes Rick Dunne, Executive Director of the NVCOG, or his successor, to sign the grant application and to sign any other documents associated with administering the grant, if awarded, including any amendments thereto.

Certification

The undersigned duly qualified officer, acting on behalf of the Naugatuck Valley Council of Governments, certifies that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted at a legally convened meeting of the Naugatuck Valley Council of Governments Board of Directors.

Dated at Waterbury, Connecticut, this 10th day of December, 2021.

Neil O'Leary, Chairman

ANSONIA - BEACON FALLS - BETHLEHEM - BRISTOL - CHESHIRE - DERBY - MIDDLEBURY - NAUGATUCK - OXFORD - PLYMOUTH
PROSPECT - SEYMOUR - SHELTON - SOUTHBURY - THOMASTON - WATERBURY - WATERTOWN - WOLCOTT - WOODBURY



SECRETARY'S CERTIFICATE/RESOLUTION

I, Neil O'Leary, Chairman of Naugatuck Valley Council of Governments, an organization (the "Organization") existing under the laws of the State of Connecticut, certify that the following are true and complete resolutions which were adopted at a duly called and held meeting of the governing body of Naugatuck Valley Council of Governments on 12/10/2021, and that such resolutions have not been amended or modified and continue to be in full force and effect:

RESOLVED, that the Organization execute and deliver to the State of Connecticut a Notice of Grant Award (the "Agreement") in the amount of \$490,641.84 for the 2022 Regional Services Grant.

RESOLVED, that Richard T. Dunne, as Executive Director of the Organization, is directed to execute and deliver the Agreement on behalf of the Organization and to do all things necessary or appropriate to carry out the terms of the Agreement, including executing and delivering all agreements and documents contemplated by the Agreement.

I further certify that Richard T. Dunne now holds the office of Executive Director and that he/she has held that office since 1/1/2015.

I am signing this certificate on 12/10/2021.

Chairman

Signature

SEAL